
Executive Committee
Meeting Packet

April 27, 2023 
9:00 am - 11:00 am

Attend In Person at

Cascades West Albany Center, 1400 Queen Avenue SE, Albany, OR 97322 

Or Attend Virtually:

Click to Join Teams Meeting 

Next Executive Committee Meeting: 
June 22, 2023 at 9:00 am

The meeting locations are wheelchair accessible. If you need special assistance,  
please contact Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments 

at 541-967-8720 or adminGA@ocwcog.org, forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting.

1

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MTk3MTY3OTktMjFjMC00ODQ3LWEyMWYtM2E5MWUyNmQ1NjYx%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22cf8f0bab-b5d5-47ad-9a03-39ec05c04fbc%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b12a7d09-4842-4d79-ab2b-cde0828bc369%22%7d


1400 Queen Ave SE • Suite 201 • Albany, OR 97322 
(541) 967-8720 • FAX (541) 967-6123

OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA 

April 27, 2023 
9:00 – 11:00 am 

Cascades West Albany Center 
1400 Queen Avenue SE 

Albany, OR 97322 

Join Teams Meeting 

An Executive Session may be called as deemed necessary by the Chair, pursuant to ORS 192.660. 

NOTE: Please contact Ashlyn Muzechenko at 541-812-2002 or amuzechenko@ocwcog.org, no later than 
noon on Wednesday, April 26th, to confirm your attendance. 

1. Welcome/Call to Order (Chair, Commissioner Claire Hall)
(9:00 – 9:05 am) 

Introductions 

2. Consent Calendar (Chair, Commissioner Claire Hall)
(9:05 – 9:10 am) 

a. Approval of Executive Committee meeting minutes for February 23, 2023. (Page 4)
b. SSAC Membership Application. (Page 12)
c. CWEDD Board Appointments 2023. (Page 14)

ACTION: Motion to approve Consent Calendar items. 

3. EDA Planning Grant Resolution  (CED Planner Justin Peterson)
(9:10 – 9:15am) 

Economic Development Administration Planning Grant, Resolution 2023-03-01. (Page 15) 

ACTION:  Motion to approve Resolution 2023-03-01. 

4. DEI Focus Group (Executive Director Ryan Vogt)
(9:30 – 9:40 am) 

ACTION: Information only. 

5. Executive Director Update (Executive Director Ryan Vogt)
(9:40 – 9:50 am) 

ACTION: Information only. 

2

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_MTk3MTY3OTktMjFjMC00ODQ3LWEyMWYtM2E5MWUyNmQ1NjYx%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%2522cf8f0bab-b5d5-47ad-9a03-39ec05c04fbc%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%2522b12a7d09-4842-4d79-ab2b-cde0828bc369%2522%257d&data=05%7C01%7Cmwalker%40ocwcog.org%7C0e02b0e31e714ebd520d08db20cd8b17%7Ccf8f0babb5d547ad9a0339ec05c04fbc%7C1%7C0%7C638139839394667520%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3ZfYVncYgznCw9zwD9k%2BOhnLXN1I6Ez8xbZOOIn8pVQ%3D&reserved=0
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MTk3MTY3OTktMjFjMC00ODQ3LWEyMWYtM2E5MWUyNmQ1NjYx%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22cf8f0bab-b5d5-47ad-9a03-39ec05c04fbc%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b12a7d09-4842-4d79-ab2b-cde0828bc369%22%7d
mailto:amuzechenko@ocwcog.org


6. Other Business (Chair, Commissioner Claire Hall)
(9:50 – 9:55 am) 

7. Executive Session (Chair, Commissioner Claire Hall)
(9:55 – 11:00 am)

• 192.660 (2)(d) Bargaining/Labor Negotiations
• 192.660 (2)(e) Real Property

8. Adjournment 
(11:00 am)

3



OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

Via Zoom Audio / Video Conference 
February 23, 2023 

MEMBERS: Chair Commissioner Claire Hall, Lincoln County; Treasurer Commissioner Pat 
Malone, Benton County; Mayor Alex Johnson II, City of Albany; and Mayor Dean 
Sawyer, City of Newport. 

ABSENT: Vice-Chair Commissioner Sherrie Sprenger, Linn County; and Mayor Chas Jones, 
City of Philomath. 

STAFF: Executive Director Ryan Vogt; Senior, Disability, and Community Services 
Programs Director Randi Moore; Finance Director Marit Nelson; Technology 
Services Director Jason Sele; Human Resource Manager Ryan Schulze; 
Communication Officers Meg Walker; and Executive Assistant, Leah Snodgrass. 

PUBLIC: None 

1. Call to Order
The Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments’ (OCWCOG) Executive Committee Meeting 
was called to order by Chair Hall on February 23, 2023, at 9:01 am via Teams Video and Audio 
Conferencing and in person attendance. Chair Hall welcomed everyone and confirmed a quorum 
was reached for voting purposes. The attendees took turns introducing themselves.  

2. Consent Calendar
Chair Hall asked for a motion to approve the Consent Calendar which included the meeting 
minutes from October 27, 2022. Treasurer Malone moved to approve the consent calendar, and 
Mayor Johnson seconded it. A vote was taken and passed unanimously. 

3. Annual Reports
Communications Officer Walker shared the following presentation and summarized the 
information on the draft copies of the 2022 Annual Reports which include a Regional Report, the 
Benton County Report, and the City of Newport Report:  

4



5



 
 

 
 

6



 
 

 
 

7



  
 
 

 
 

8



 
 

 
 
 
Treasurer Malone stated he likes the format, and thinks it is important for people to know all of 
the services. Breaking it down to the city level makes it even more real.  

9



Mayor Sawyer said he liked seeing the local city level report and hearing about the 2 Broke 
Bartenders on the loan program. Mayor Sawyer added that he called into SHIBA and had a great 
experience, recommended the service to some of his senior friends, and wanted to let Executive 
Director Vogt know so he can share that with SHIBA staff. 
 
Executive Director Vogt stated he is excited to share this information with the Region, and asked 
the Committee to help circulate the final document when it is sent to them. Executive Director 
Vogt added that this is the first time this information has been broken down to the membership 
level and asked the Committee to consider giving feedback to help improve future Annual 
Reports.   
 
Chair Hall added she liked seeing the information at the city level and thinks the documents look 
attractive. 
 

4. OCWCOG Bylaws Review   
Executive Director Vogt directed the Committee’s attention to page seven (7) of the meeting 
packet showing the proposed Amended OCWCOG Bylaws. Executive Director Vogt explained 
the look and flow of these Bylaws will set the structure standard for all the Standing Committees, 
which are all being examined at this time for updating.  
 
Executive Director Vogt summarized the proposed updates that are displayed in red text, and 
pointed out the biggest changes are adding in membership language which was taken directly 
from the Articles of Agreement and removing the Community and Economic Development 
Committee (CEDC) from the Standing Committee list.  
 
Executive Director Vogt stated CEDC has not been functioning for around five (5) years and was 
replaced by the Cascades West Economic Development District (CWEDD). CWEDD also 
includes members of the Lane Council of Governments (LCOG). Executive Director Vogt 
suggested to not list CWEDD in the OCWCOG Bylaws because it could cause conflict with LCOG 
and OCWCOG having their own Board of Directors and governing documents.  
 
Treasurer Malone agreed that CWEDD should not be listed under the Standing Committees. 
Chair Hall, Mayor Johnson and Mayor Sawyer agreed with Treasurer Malone.  
 
Executive Director Vogt stated the Budget Committee has also been added to the list of Standing 
Committees to reflect the statutory requirement and identify it as an OCWCOG Committee. In the 
past there was a request to try and combine the Budget and Finance Committee, but after 
receiving legal advice they will remain separate, and will continue to run back to back.  
 
Mayor Johnson asked where does audit committee fall under? Executive Director Vogt answered 
that the audit work is handled interagency directly with the auditors and does not have any 
external advisory body. Audit details are given in the Finance Committee meetings.  
 
Mayor Sawyer moved to send the Amended OCWCOG Bylaws to the Board of Director’s for 
adoption, and Mayor Johnson seconded it. A vote was taken and passed unanimously. 
 

5. Annual Membership Dues Calculations Review 
Finance Director Nelson summarized her memo starting on page twelve (12) of the Executive 
Committee meeting packet. Finance Director Nelson pointed out that this year’s membership dues 
will increase by nine and half percent (9.5%) based on population count and the 2022 Seattle 
CPI-U rate.  
 
Chair Hall recognizes that dues can be a sensitive subject. After reviewing the increase, Chair 
Hall doesn’t see any shocking jumps in membership dues amounts.  

10



 
Treasurer Malone appreciated being able to review the information and look at options. Treasurer 
Malone suggested selecting a rate that is in the middle of this year’s increase rate and last years 
rate, like seven to seven and a half percent (7-7.5%).  
 
Mayor Sawyer likes Treasurer Malone’s suggestion of using a rate that is in the middle, six-point-
four percent (6.4%) is too low considering the cost of living has increased, and eight-point-four 
percent (8.4%) might hurt some of the smaller cities.  
 
Mayor Johnson also likes the idea of a “middle ground”. Mayor Johnson also thought another 
solution could be is the larger populated cities pay a higher rate than smaller cities to help ease 
the burden and not lose the smaller communities’ membership. 
 
Chair Hall looked at overall dollar amount increases for Depoe Bay at one hundred and twenty-
five dollars ($125) and Lincoln City at eight hundred and nineteen dollars ($819) for example, and 
doesn’t think it is asking too much of a membership rate increase.  
 
Mayor Sawyer suggested the Executive Committee decide on the rate and simply state that they 
pick the middle rate between the high and the low. Finance Director Nelson did the calculation, 
and reported the middle rate would be seven and a half percent (7.5%).  
 
Executive Director Vogt reminded the committee that the dues are also used for match fund grant 
opportunities, with exception of special project dues.  
 
Mayor Johnson moved to present alternative methods for dues calculations to the Board of 
Directors for consideration and adoption, and Mayor Sawyer seconded it. A vote was taken and 
passed unanimously. 
 

6. Executive Director Update 
Executive Director Vogt reports the contract with NetSuite Oracle for the Enterprise Software 
Solution was signed about a week ago, and the contractors have already been onsite yesterday 
and today. NetSuite’s implementation team is also working with Community Services Consortium 
(CSC).  
 
Yesterday CSC and OCWCOG signed a contract with the Diversity, Equity and Inclusion 
contractor MGT Consulting. They will begin their work starting April 1, 2023.  
 
Executive Director Vogt reminded the Committee about the Board Orientation meeting on March 
9, 2023, and invited the Committee to attend.  
 

7. Other Business 
No other business was discussed.  
 

8. Adjournment 
Chair Hall adjourned at 9:56 am.   

 
Meeting minutes taken by Leah Snodgrass. 

 

11



12



Experiences 
List any of the following experiences you have working with seniors or people with 
disabilities: ________________________________________________________ 

• Educational  _________________________________________________
• Work/Volunteer  _______________________________________________
• Personal  _____________________________________________________

Describe how your life experiences, including those above, have had an impact or 
influence on your life. 

Describe why you want to be a Council member. 

Please list two references (personal or professional): 

What skills would you bring to the Advisory Council? 

What do you expect to gain from volunteering with the Advisory Council? 

MSW

more than 40 yrs.VA,Salem State Hospital,plus

I believe that I have a unique perspective for MSW, as I have worked inpatient and outpatient 
medicine and behavioral health.

Have served on LCOG board when I first came to Eugene VA.I coordinated the Community Care 
Program, which certified/managed licensed facilities. This included Nursing Homes, Residential Care 
Facilities and Foster Homes. Also, worked closely with Senior Protective Services for many years. 

Corrine Clifford,RN-541-915-5434 
Laurina Peters,RN(retired) 5418685433 
Gary Glasser,MD(retired)9541-852-8093

Knowledge,enthusiasm, and a desire to be helpful.

 
To positively contribute to the Mission of Senior Services, and the satisfaction that I can be helpful.

13



1400 Queen Ave SE • Suite 201 • Albany, OR  97322 
(541) 967-8720    •    FAX (541) 967-6123

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: April 27, 2023 

TO: OCWCOG Executive Committee 

FROM: Justin Peterson, Economic Development Planner 

RE:  Appointments to Cascades West Economic Development District Board 

Community and Economic Development Staff recommends the following individuals be appointed to 
the Cascades West Economic Development District (CWEDD) Board for one-year terms.   

Benton County: 
 Chris Workman, City of Philomath, City Manager

Lincoln County: 
 Paul Schuytema, Economic Development Alliance of Lincoln County, Executive Director
 Pam Barlow-Lind, Confederated Tribes of Siletz Indians, Tribal Planner

Linn County: 
 Kelly Hart, City of Lebanon, Community Development Director
 John Pascone, Albany Millersburg Economic Development Corporation, President
 Seth Sherry, City of Albany, Economic Development Manager or Sophie Adams, City of Albany,

Economic Development Coordinator (Note: Albany is located in Linn and Benton County, and
Seth/Sophie are replacing Kate Porche who previously worked for Corvallis)

The CWEDD Board has twenty members.  The requested appointments will join the OCWCOG Board 
Executive Committee, LCOG Executive Committee, and two-Lane Economic Committee members 
appointed by LCOG to comprise the CWEDD Board. See attached for full membership. 

The primary responsibility of the CWEDD Board is the review and approval of the CWEDD 
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy every five years as required by our planning grant 
from the federal Economic Development Administration. The CWEDD Board also provides input on an 
annual Update Report required under this planning grant. 

ACTION: Appointment of Benton, Lincoln, and Linn County members to the Cascades West 
Economic Development District Board.  

MEMBER GOVERNMENTS — COUNTIES: Benton, Lincoln, and Linn CITIES: Adair Village, Albany, Brownsville, Corvallis, Depoe Bay, 
Halsey, Harrisburg, Lebanon, Lincoln City, Millersburg, Monroe, Newport, Philomath, Siletz, Sodaville, Sweet Home, Tangent, Toledo, 
Waldport, Yachats OTHER: Confederated Tribes of Siletz Indians and Port of Newport  

14



CWEDD Membership  2023 

OCWCOG Members Title Agency Email Notes
Nancy Wyse Commissioner Benton County nancy.wyse@co.benton.or.us Exec Committee
Claire Hall County Commissioner Lincoln County cehall@co.lincoln.or.us Exec Committee
Alex Johnson II Mayor City of Albany alex@cityofalbany.net Exec Committee
Sherrie Sprenger Commissioner Linn County ssprenger@co.linn.or.us Exec Committee
Chas Jones Mayor City of Philomath Chas.Jones@PhilomathOregon.gov Exec Committee
Dean Sawyer Mayor City of Newport d.sawyer@newportoregon.ogov Exec Committee
Paul Schuytema Executive Director Economic Development Alliance of Lincoln County paul@businesslincolncounty.com Exec Committee
Chris Workman City Manager City of Philomath chris.workman@ci.philomath.or.us County Member
Kelly Hart Community Dev. Director City of Lebanon khart@ci.lebanon.or.us County Member
John Pascone President Albany-Millersburg Economic Development Corporation pasconj@peak.org County Member
Pam Barlow-Lind Tribal Planner Confederated Tribes of Siletz Indians pamela@ctsi.nsn.us County Member
Seth Sherry or - Economic Development Manager City of Albany seth.sherry@cityofalbany.net County Member
Sophie Adams Economic Development Coordinator City of Albany sophie.adams@cityofalbany.net County Member
Lane Members Title Agency Email Notes
Greg James Board Member WillamaLane Parks and Recreation District greg.james@willamalane.org Exec Committee
Bryan Cutchen Mayor City of Oakridge mayor@ci.oakridge.or.us Exec Committee
Randy Groves City Councilor City of Eugene RGroves@Eugene-or.gov Exec Committee
Heather Buch Commissioner Lane County heather.buch@co.lane.or.us Exec Committee
Patti Chappel President Emerald People's Utility District patti.chappel@epud.org Exec Committee
Kori Rodley City Councilor City of Springfield krodley@springfield-or.gov Exec Committee
Greg Ervin City Councilor City of Cottage Grove greg@ervinit.com County Member
Matt Michel City Manager City of Veneta mmichel@ci.veneta.or.us County Member
LCOG Staff Email Notes
Brenda Wilson Executive Director Lane Council of Governments bwilson@lcog.org Staff
Sandra Easdale Loan Officer Lane Council of Governments seasdale@lcog.org Staff
OCWCOG Staff Email Notes
VACANT CED Director Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments Staff
Justin Peterson Community Dev. Planner Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments jpeterson@ocwcog.org Staff
Emma Chavez Operations Supervisor Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments echavez@ocwcog.org Staff
Ashlyn Muzechenko Administrative Assistant Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments amuzechenko@ocwcog.org Staff

15



1400 Queen Ave SE • Suite 201 • Albany, OR 97322 
(541) 967-8720  •  FAX (541) 967-6123

MEMBER GOVERNMENTS — COUNTIES: Benton, Lincoln, and Linn CITIES: Adair Village, Albany, Brownsville, Corvallis, Depoe Bay, 
Halsey, Harrisburg, Lebanon, Lincoln City, Millersburg, Monroe, Newport, Philomath, Siletz, Sodaville, Sweet Home, Tangent, Toledo, 
Waldport, Yachats OTHER: Confederated Tribes of Siletz Indians and Port of Newport  

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: April 27, 2023 

TO: OCWCOG Executive Committee  

FROM: Justin Peterson, Economic Development Planner 

RE: Resolution 2023-03-01: Authorizing Economic Development Administration 
Planning Grant Submittal 

Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 is the first year in the three-year planning grant cycle for the Economic 
Development Administration’s (EDA) Partnership Planning Program. OCWCOG submitted a 
proposed Budget to the EDA for the entire three-year project period in January 2023. The EDA 
awards funds annually, with the future allocation of funding contingent upon the availability of 
funds as determined by Congress; satisfactory performance of the program; and the continued 
relevance of program objectives. All funding allocations are at the sole discretion of the EDA. 
Resolutions are brought to the OCWCOG Board of Directors for approval on a yearly basis for 
submission to EDA with the application. 

Attached is Resolution 2023-03-01: Authorizing Economic Development Administration Planning 
Grant Submittal. If approved by the OCWCOG Board of Directors, this Resolution would 
authorize a funding match for the FY2023 EDA planning grant. This grant award is for the period 
of April 1, 2023 – March 31, 2024. The grant is for $75,000, and requires an equal amount of 
match from OCWCOG. The Cascades West Economic Development District funded by this 
grant covers the four-County Region encompassing Linn, Benton, Lincoln, and Lane Counties, 
OCWCOG is applying for this grant in coordination with Lane Council of Governments (LCOG). 
LCOG provides a proportional share of match funding.  

ACTION: Approval of the required Resolution 2023-03-01: Authorizing Economic 
Development Administration Planning Grant Submittal. 

16



OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

RESOLUTION # 2023-03-01 

Authorizing Economic Development Administration Planning Grant Submittal 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Commerce's Economic Development Administration (EDA) 
has invited a planning grant application for the period of April 1, 2023 through March 31, 2024; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that past planning grants have supported a sound and effective 
program for community and economic development in Linn, Benton, Lincoln, and Lane 
Counties; and 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that local funds available to match the requested grant are severely 
constrained; 

NOW THEREFORE, Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments resolves that: 

1. Application for an EDA planning grant is hereby authorized.
2. The amount of the grant request shall be $75,000 in Federal funds.
3. $75,000 is committed as cash-match for this project. Funds will be made available as

needed for the project. These funds are not, and will not be, conditioned or encumbered in
any way that would preclude their use, consistent with EDA investment assistance
requirements.

4. The Chairperson and/or the Executive Director are authorized and empowered to execute
any and all grant documents for application, acceptance, or amendment of this grant.

ADOPTED this 27th day of April 2023, at Albany, Oregon. 

Claire Hall Ryan Vogt 
OCWCOG Board Chair OCWCOG Executive Director 

17


	ADP74EC.tmp
	OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AGENDA
	An Executive Session may be called as deemed necessary by the Chair, pursuant to ORS 192.660.

	ACTION:  Motion to approve Consent Calendar items.
	ACTION:  Information only, no action needed.
	ACTION: Information only, no action needed.

	ADP333C.tmp
	OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEE MINUTES
	December 9, 2021
	Via Zoom Video and Audio Conferencing

	ADPD165.tmp
	Jul-Nov FY2021-2022

	ADP8305.tmp
	M E M O R A N D U M
	RE: OCWCOG Member Dues for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23
	ACTION: Motion to recommend to the Board approval of Member Dues for FY 2022-23.

	ADPE5E8.tmp
	Dues

	ADP7AC9.tmp
	M E M O R A N D U M
	RE: Bylaw Committee Update

	ADP5CB1.tmp
	OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
	EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA
	ACTION: Motion to approve Consent Calendar items.
	ACTION: Determine next steps to present to Board of Directors.
	ACTION: Information only.
	ACTION: Information only.
	7. Other Business (Chair, Commissioner Claire Hall)
	8. Executive Session (Chair, Commissioner Claire Hall)
	(9:55 – 11:00 am)
	9. Adjournment
	(11:00 am)




